Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact

A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, June 9, 2015
At
5:15 p.m,
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2" floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Traverse City Light and Power

1131 Hastings Street

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940

Posting Date: 06-05-15



Light and Power Board 2 June 9, 2015
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calenday

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial ilems
together fo be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board,
staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and
placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically
respected. If an item is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses
on the agenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of May 26, 2015. (Approval
recommended) (p. 4)

b. Receive and file minutes of the Human Resources Ad Hoc Committee Meeting of May
22, 2015. (Approval recommended) (p. 7)

c. Consideration of approving the 2015-2016 Insurance Renewal. (Approval recommended)
(Myers-Beman) (p. 8)

Items Removed from the Consent Calendar

a.

b.

3. Unfinished Business

a. Pine Street — Overhead to Underground Conversion Project expanded re-authorization.
(Arends) (p. 14)

4, New Business

a. Consideration of awarding a bid for Hastings Street Storage Facility. (Arends/Bob
Sommerville) (p. 20)

b. Consideration of authorizing a construction agreement for Pine Street — Overhead to
Underground Conversion Project conduit installation. (Arends/GRP Engineering) (p. 25)

c. Consideration of authorizing a construction agreement for Pine Street — Overhead to
Underground Conversion Project electrical cable and equipment installation.
(Arends/GRP Engineering) (p. 28)

d. Consideration of authorizing a purchase order to Power Line Supply in the amount for
$407,928 for underground cable for the Pine Street — Overhead to Underground
Conversion Project. (Arends) (p. 32)



Light and Power Board 3 June 9, 2015
Regular Meeting

€. Consideration of a periodic personnel evaluation of Tim Arends, Executive Director.
(Taylor/H.R. Ad Hoc Committee) (possible closed session) (p. 34)

5. Appointments

None.

6. Reporis and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.
1. Announcement of RP3 Award status. (Arends) (p. 50)
2. Discussion regarding a solar addition to Hastings Street Storage Facility.
{(Wheaton) (p. 51)

3. Presentation of third quarter financial report. (Myers-Beman) (p. 52)
4, TCL&P news and correspondence. (General — No Olfficial Report) (p. 56)

C. From Board.

7. Public Comment

/st



TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, May 26, 2015

Board Members -
Present: Barbara Budros, Jim Carruthers, Pat McGuire, Jeff Palisin, Bob Spence,
Jan Geht, John Taylor
Ex Officio Member -
Present: Penny Hill, Acting City Manager
Others: Tim Arends, Scott Menhart, Kal‘lg / s_-Beman, Tom Olney, Kelli

Schroeder, Stephanie Tvardek, Jgs Nheaton, Blake Wilson

The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by

Tim Arends, Executive Director, recognized R__: Hauselman and Brad gl

ell, recent retirees of
TCL&P, for their service to the organization. :

Chairman Taylor lecogmzed Dan Y ka, TCL&P’ S-M : Technical Services Lead, for his
thirty years of service to the or gamza U his retirement.May 29, 2015.

5:19 Bob Spence joined the meeting.

CARRIED unanimouslff'

Items Removed from the oiisent Calendar

None.

Item 3 on the Agenda being Unfinished Business

a. Consideration of approving the budget and capital plan for 2015-16.

Moved by Palisin, seconded by Geht, that the Light & Power Board formally adopts the 2015-16
operating budgets for the electric utility and fiber optic funds and the six year capital
improvements plan.

CARRIED unanimousty.



TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 May 26, 2015

Item 4 on the Agenda being New Business

a. Consideration of authorizing renewal of the License to Use Coal Dock and Bottomlands
with Maritime Heritage Alliance, Inc.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Moved by McGuire, seconded by Geht, that the Board approve the License to Use Coal Dock

and Bottomlands with Maritime Heritage Alliance, Inc, and assignment of this License to the
City.

The following individuals from the public addres
Rod Jones, President, MHA, 12684 S. Cedar L 1e;
CARRIED unanimously.

Item 5 on the Agenda being Appointments

From Légal.Counsel.
None.
b. From Staff.

1. Jessica Wheaton provided an update regarding the Navigant process.
2. Tim Arends discussed the possible creation of a fiber optic opportunity taskforce.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Penny Hill, Acting City Manager

3. Board and staff discussed TCL&P’s future financial participation with City of
Traverse City and Downtown Development Authority projects.

The following individuals addressed the Board:;



TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 May 26, 2015

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Jessica Wheaton, Manager of Energy Services & Key Accounts

Moved by Geht, seconded by Budros, to suspend the board rules and appoint an ad hoc
committee for the purposes of developing survey questions to consist of Chairman John Taylor,
Vice Chairman Jan Geht and Pat McGuire.

CARRIED unanimously.

4. Tim Arends recognized Tom Olney, Operations Manager, for his service to the
organization upon his retirement on May 29, 2015.

c. From Board.

1. Chairman Taylor provided an update on the 1¢
committee meeting regarding the review of'h
provided for the Board to review. Thisitém 1
Meeting. :

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Commen

No one from the public commented;

There being no objection, Chairman Tay i g adjourned at 6:53 p.m.

m Arends, Secretary

/st LIGHT AND POWER BOARD



TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes
Human Resources Ad Hoc Committee
Held at 12:00 p.m., Mayor’s Conference Room, Governmental Center
Friday, May 22, 2015

Committee Members -

Present: Barbara Budros, Bob Spence, John Taylor

Absent: None

Others: None

The meeting was called to order at 12:00 p.m.

1. Consideration of a recommendation to:the full board regarding the Executive

Director’s contract.

“contract. A fornia
nsideration at the June 9, 2015

Committee members discussed the Executivé
recommendation will be brou
Regular Meeting, X

P Public Comment:
No one from the publi¢:commented

There bein jecti 5 igm nce declared the meeting adjourned at 1:20
p.m. )

John Taylor, Chairman

/st LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controllerw
Date: June 3, 2015

Subject: 2015-2016 Insurance Rencwal

The Michigan Municipal League (MML) has submitted its proposal for liability and property
insurance for fiscal year 2015-2016 in the amount of $67,536.  Attached is an Executive Overview
from MML describing their company, the insurance process, and a list of benefits of pooling with
MML.

This year there is an increase of 2.771%.

2009-10 - § 75,564
2010-11-% 69,781
2011-12-% 61,214
2012-13 - $ 63,392
2013-14 - § 64,995
2014-15-§ 65,715
2015-16-% 67,536

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Staff recommends that the
Board accept this proposal and authorize payment to MML for the 2015-2016 property & liability
insurance premium. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s
recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “ltems Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the
agenda for full discussion. If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the
following motion would be appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,

THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD APPROVES PAYMENT TO THE MICHIGAN
MUNICIPAL LEAGUE LIABILITY AND PROPERTY POOL IN THE AMOUNT OF
$67,536 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 LIABILITY AND PROPERTY INSURANCE,




m

June 2, 2015

Karla Myers-Berman, Controller
Traverse City Light & Power

L. michigan municipal league
liability and property pool

Re: Traverse City Light and Power Renewal Premium for 2015-2016.

TCLP’s renewal premium represents an increase of approximately 2.771%. The premium
increase is primarily due to MML’s 2% property inflation guard and adding Railroad

Protective Liability.,

Also, MML property rates increased four cents due to the Pool’s loss experience and an
increase in MML property reinsurance rates. MML liability rates did not change.

Line of Coverage 2014-2015 | 2015-2016 | 2014-2015 | 2015-2016
Premium Premium Deductible | Deductible

General Liability $12,865 $13,683 $0 $0

Errors & Omissions $17,507 $15,531 $0 $0

Property $22,935 $24,023 $5,000 $5,000

Excess Liability | mm x1 mm | $6,204 $7,149 N/A N/A

Excess Liability 3 mm x 2 mm | $6,204 $7,150

Total $65,715 $67,536.

The Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool appreciate your 30 years of
membership and we are committed to providing you with the best comprehensive

coverage and service.
Sincerely,

(s Mg

Connie M. Monson
MML Account Executive

Service Provider: Meadowbrook® Insurance Group

Loss Control & Member Services:
Southfield Claims Service:

Grand Rapids Claims:

3501 Lake Eastbrook S.E.,
152-74717;

P.0O. Box 2054, Socuthfield, MI 48037;

358-1614

P.0O. Box 5174, Southfield, MI 48086-5174;

358—-3251
Suite 150,
Fax (616)
www.mml.org

942-0390

(248) 204-6123;

(248) 204-6123;

Grand Rapids, MI 49546-5939;

(800)

(800) 482-0626;

482-0626;

(616) 942-0311;

Fax

Fax (248)

(248)

(800)

9




liability and property pool
m workers’ compensation fund
e Membership news

Michigan Municipal League Boards Announce 2015 Member Dividends

In keeping with the Michigan Municipal League's mission of providing long-term, stable, cost-
effective risk management services to our members, the board of directors of the Michigan
Municipal League Liability & Property Pool voted to return $2.55 million in equity to members
who renew coverage in 2015. This latest distribution follows the $10.5 million returned over the
previous four years. In addition, the trustees of the MML Workers' Compensation Fund
authorized an equity return of $8.4 million as part of members' July 1, 2015 renewal.

The Michigan Municipal League Liability & Property Pool and the MML Workers' Compensation
Fund are the nonprofit self-insurance programs owned, operated and governed by you and your
fellow communities. Over the long run, they represent the lowest cost insurance alternative for
Michigan local governments. Excess contributions—the direct result of your cooperative work to
control losses—are returned to members through dividends, expanded coverage or improved
services.

Remember, these are your programs: the ability to return ownership equity depends on your
efforts; these latest distributions represent premium dollars that would otherwise be lost to out-
of-state or out-of-country commercial insurers.

Please tell us how else we can make your insurance programs work for you.

MML Liability & Property
Pool Directors

Chair: Jason Eppler Vice Chair: Robert Clark Dan Gilmartin
Manager Mayor Executive Director
City of lonia City of Monroe MML

Penny Hill Sue Osbhorn David Post
Assistant Manager Mayor Manager

City of Traverse City City of Fenton Village of Hillman
Adam Smith Jean Stegeman Paula Zelenko
Manager Mayor Mayor

Village of Mackinaw City City of Menominee City of Burton

10




MML Workers' Compensation
Fund Trustees

Chair: Elva Mills
President
Village of Lexington

Christine Burns
Manager
Village of Spring Lake

Dan Gilmartin
Executive Director
MML

Dan Reszka
President
Village of Elk Rapids

Thomas Winarski

Mayor
City of Gladwin

For more information:

Vice Chair: George Bosanic
Manager
City of Greenville

Frank Campbell
Mayor
City of Hastings

Ken Hibl
Manager
City of Clare

Amy Roddy
Manager
City of Durand

Michael Forster, Director, Risk Management Services

Frank Brock, Jr.
Mayor
City of Lathrup Village

Maureen Donker
Mayor
City of Midland

Larry Nielsen
Manager
Village of Paw Paw

William Vajda
Manager
City of Marquette

734-669-6340 or mforster@mml.org

About the Liability & Property Pool

The Michigan Municipal League Liability & Property Pool provides comprehensive property,
general liability, auto liability, public officials' liability insurance and related services to hundreds
of Michigan cities, villages, townships and other public entities. We write more than $18 million
in premiums, have more than $50 million in net assets and have returned more than $10 million
in dividends to our member/owners over the last 4 years. The Pool has remained a financially
strong and stable source of insurance and risk management services since 1982. We offer up to
$10 million per occurrence for liability, replacement cost property coverage and a host of risk
management services that are second to none.

About the Workers' Compensation Fund

The Michigan Municipal League Workers' Compensation Fund is the state's leading provider of
municipal workers' compensation and risk management services. The Fund has the lowest
rates, the best claims service and the highest historical return of dividends of any insurer in
Michigan. The Fund has mare than 890 members, $135 million in assets and more than $66
million in net assets. Efficient administration, effective loss control programs and proactive
claims services have resulted in rates that are on average 50 percent lower than those of our
nearest competitor.

11




.

michigan municipal league

Liability & Property Pool

Proposal

for the

City of Traverse City

Presented By:

Connie M. Monson
MML Account Executive
(877)370-8892

Meadowbrook® Insurance Group, Service Provider

June 2, 2015

12



Executive Overview

The Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool is administered by the Risk
Management staff of the Michigan Municipal League, and serviced by Meadowbrook
Insurance Group. Since 1982, the Pool has been a stable source of comprehensive
municipal insurance and risk management services. It is financially secure and positioned
for long-term stability.

The City of Traverse City has been a Pool member since 1985.

The League administrative staff and the dedicated Pool staff at Meadowbrook Insurance
Group are municipal insurance experts. Municipal risk management is our only business,
and we’re proud of it!

The Pool provides insurance coverage designed specifically for Michigan municipal
exposures, combined with a package of loss control programs, claims administration, legal
defense and membership services that you won't find anywhere else in Michigan.

This quotation is based on the limits of coverage requested by the City of Traverse City.
Higher limits may be available, subject to underwriting review by Pool Management.
Please submit requests for higher limits in writing to your Account Executive. Your request
will be considered by Pool Management.

The insurance and related services described more fully in this proposal are being offered
to the City of Traverse City for an annual premium of $425,598.

City of Traverse City ~ $358,062.
Traverse Light & Power $67,536

Note: The MML Liability & Property Pool Board of Trustees voted to return another post-
renewal dividend for Members renewing in 2015. The City of Traverse City's portion of the
dividend return is $56,608. Traverse City will receive this dividend in the month following
payment of your 2015 renewal premium.

We encourage you to compare the Pool with our competition. Compare us based on price,
coverage, service, financial security, experience and commitment to municipal risk
management. When you do, the advantages of Pool membership become clear.

Thank you for being a Pool member. We look forward to servicing your risk management
program for many years to come.

Our Mission

To be a long-term, stable, cost-effective risk management alternative for
members of the Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool.

3

13




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

Q,ST- '9]2

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: June 3, 2015

Subject: Expanded Project Reauthorization Request — Pine Street Overhead to Underground
Conversion

In June of 2012 the TCL&P Board approved a project authorization request for the conversion of
distribution circuits along Pine and State Streets from overhead to underground. The original
project included an additional circuit out of Hall Strect Substation to the alley between Front and
State Street to support the load growth in the downtown area. In addition, the project included
undergrounding the circuit that runs parallel to the Boardman River (south bank) on the property
more commonly known as the Bus Depot Property (now the future site of Uptown Development)
to State Street.

Completed to-date are the conduit installations along Pine and State Streets for the distribution
circuits and a future streetscape lighting circuit that was installed in conjunction with the City’s
upgrade of State and Pine Streets last fall. The completion of this project is contingent on a
pedestrian bridge being constructed over the north branch of the Boardinan River behind J&S
Hamburg, which is planned for this fall; the current overhead and new electric circuit will be
placed under the bridge.

In October 2013, the project was reauthorized because of the Uptown Development that will
provide for mixed use buildings and clean up a now contaminated site at Pine and State Streets.
At that time, it was thought to be best to bore under the Boardman River and come up to a pole at
the edge of Hannah Park, removing TCL&P poles within that area, while connecting the circuit
to the already existing underground ciicuit at Lay Partk.

In November 2014, the project was reauthorized again because it was determined to be more
feasible to utilize the conduit installed along State Street and install conduit down Union Street
under the existing bridge and into Lay Park rather than boring under the Boardman River.

The reauthorization request for consideration today is authorizing the expansion of this project by
extending the underground circuit, HL.-3 1, from the intersection of State and Union down Union
Street, east on State Street alley to Cass Street and connect in with the undergrounding installed
by the Washington Place development. The benefits of this is to prevent a short overhead span
subject to lightning strikes and improve the aesthetics of the downtown area by placing overhead

14



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

lines underground.
If the Board agrees with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be appropriate:
MOVED BY » SECONDED BY , THAT

THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD RE-AUTHORIZES THE PINE STREET OVERHEAD
TO UNDERGROUND CONVERSION PROJECT AS PRESENTED.

15




Pine Street — Overhead to Underground

Distribution Conversion TRAVERSE CITY
EXPANDED PROJECT RE-AUTHORIZATION Y LIGHT & POWER
REQUEST
PAR# 2012-4

November11,2044]June

Date of Board Presentation/Consideration: 9, 2015

Budgeted in Capital Plan:  Yes CIP: $1,6606330,000 as of 2015-16 capital plan

Objective:

Target Completion date of November 1, 2013 for conduit installation only. Date for installation
of underground cable and removal of overhead facilities-Deeember31;2045March 31, 2016.

Project Description:

The project generally consists of the conversion of 13.8kV distribution lines from overhead to
underground along Pine Street with removal of the north/south line that spans the Boardman
River and relocate to State Street underground to Union Street, under the Union Street Bridge
and into Lay Park. In addition, underground an overhead circuit that runs parallel along the
Boardman River to State Street from Pine to behind the post office to accommodate development
of the Uptown Project. _An expansion to this project includes undergrounding an overhead
circuit, HL-31, east along the South State Street alley to Cass Street to connect with the
undergrounding, installed at developer’s expense, at Washington Place. Undergrounding this
line will eliminate a small section of line being overhead, which is more susceptible to lightning
strikes. and will improve the aesthetics in the downtown area. -In 2012, the focus will be to
install a 13.8kv distribution conduit system in coordination with the CITY Pine Street and State
Street project areas. (Note: conduit was installed in 2012)

Also, a limited amount of street light/decorative lighting conduit would be installed. The city is
not planning on installing a “streetscape” project at this time, but will be installing new sidewalk
only with no new low level lighting or brick pavers. (Note: this was completed in 2012)

In 2015, when the planned pedestrian bridge is being constructed across the Boardman River
behind J&S Hamburg, further conduit would be installed to extend the conduit system north
across the Boardman River (under the bridge) and tie into existing facilities behind Hall Street
Substation.

Once the conduit system is fully connected the underground cable can be installed and put into
service. Only then can the overhead facilities be removed. Installation of the 13.8kV cable and
overhead removals is schedule to occur in 2015-2016, pending the completion of the planned
pedestrian bridge.

Page 1 of 4

16



Pine Street — Overhead to Underground

Distribution Conversion TRAVERSE CITY
EXPANDED PROJECT RE-AUTHORIZATION % LIGHT & POWER
REQUEST

PAR¥ 2012-4

The major distribution equipment consists of padmount switchgear and transformers, one new
distribution riser pole, conduit, manholes, and various size electric cables.

Project Purpose and Necessity:

The major purpose is for the conversion of overhead to underground distribution facilities.
Project need and timing is based on the City’s Pine/State Street project planned to begin after
Labor Day 2015, and construction of the pedestrian bridge across the Boardman River. Conduit
installation would be coordinated with these CITY projects.

Project Benefits:
The overhead to underground conversion of distribution facilities will:
- coordinate with CITY projects
- eliminate portions of the overhead distribution poles and wire to allow for the
development of properties along Pine and State Streets
- continue to support existing and future load growth in a critical section of

TCL&P’s service area

Other Alternatives:

None viable for the additional circuit needed for reliability purposes as the conversion involves
critical distribution circuits exiting Hall Street Substation. Circuit routing is confined to existing
Street right-of-way. Routing is impacted by the physical location of Hall Street Substation, the
Boardman River, and routing of the existing distribution grid. Undergrounding south of the
Front Street alley is not 1equned for 1el1ab111ty pu1poses howeve1 it is 1ecommended for the

Timing of Project:

Page 2 of 4

17




Pine Street — Overhead to Underground

Distribution Conversion TRAVERSE CITY
EXPANDED PROJECT RE-AUTHORIZATION & LIGHT & POWER
REQUEST

PAR¥ 2012-4

This project has been in the capital plan for several years awaiting coordination with CITY
projects. CITY projects involved include the Pine/State Street project (Fall 2012) and the
pedestrian bridge across the Boardman River (201 5 plO_]eCt) Condult 1nstallat10n along Pine and

State Streets completed in
2012 in order to coordinate with CITY projects.

The electrical cable and equipment installation will begin later this summer and be completed by
March 2016. The conduit installation along Union Street and State Street alley will begin later
this summer and be completed by October 30, 2015.

Project Timeline and Expenditures: SEE ATTACHED BUDGET DETAIL

Critical Items:

The most critical item in this project is the ability to obtain easements on private and City
property for the installation of conduit, manholes and equipment. TCL&P has prepared draft
easement requirements and will work through the CITY and others in order to secure areas
required for equipment placement. (Nofe: Not a non-city owned property easements have been
acquired.)

This is a preliminary cost estimate. The cost estimates do not include any low level lighting
fixtures or concrete bases as a “streetscape” is not planned at this time. The conduit associated
with the low level lighting would be available for future use.

There is no allowance for environmental investigation or to mitigate environmental conditions
should they be encountered during construction.

Funding associated with the pedestrian bridge to be determined.

Material costs, particularly for electrical cable are subject to raw material market prices (copper)
which have increased since original project approval. Some of the engineering and material costs
or Board approvals may get shifted in the schedule.

The construction coordination with the CITY’s project will reduce the amount of time TCL&P
(contractor) will have for conduit installation. This may increase contractor construction costs or
the project scope. (Note: Coordinating with the City and favorable bid from Elmer’s caused this

Page 3 of 4

18




Pine Street — Overhead to Underground

Distribution Conversion TRAVERSE CITY
EXPANDED PROJECT RE-AUTHORIZATION ‘% LIGHT & POWER
REQUEST

PAR# 2012-4

portion of the project to come in under budget projections.)
Financing Method:

Cash from TCL&P fund balance as planned for. Bonding will not be required.

Additional Revenues:

Additional revenues will be based on any future load growth that may occur in the downtown
area that would be served from the distribution grid being impacted.

Impact on O&M Expenses:

Existing labor force will perform normal monthly maintenance and connect new or upgraded
customer service requests. On a year by year basis normal O&M is minimal. Once the
underground cable begins to experience failures cable replacement costs will become more
significant, as will replacement of aging major padmount switchgear.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends L&P Board approval of the installation of conduit system, underground cable
installation and removal of overhead facilities with the timing based upon coordination with

related CITY projects.

Attachments:

Comparison of original and revised budget estimates.

Page 4 of 4

19



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

TRAVERSE CiTY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 3, 2015

Subject: Hastings Street Storage Facility

In accordance with the Board’s approval at its April 14, 2015 meeting, TCL&P solicited bids for the
storage facility that will house the outdoor equipment at the TCL&P Hastings Street Service Center
facility. This wilt prolong the useful life of this equipment along with providing easier access during the
winter months. Additionally, Hometown Connections recommended this storage facility in its efficiency
study of TCL&P for this very reason.

AAl Inc. is under contract with the utility to provide services that include design development,
construction documentation and bidding, and construction management. AAI Inc, provided oversight for
the bid process for general, mechanical and electrical trades. A public bid opening occurred on June 2,
2015; bid results are detailed on the attached bid tabulation sheet.

Staff concurs with the recommendation by AAL Inc. to issue the award to Grand Traverse Construction
for the general trade, ABI Mechanical for the mechanical trade and Advantage Electric for the clectrical
trade as explained in AAL Inc. letter that is attached. Grand Traverse Construction will act as General
Contractor and will oversee general, mechanical, and electrical subcontractors work. The total contract
cost is $411,607 close to the budgeted amount of $408,200.

if the Board is in agreement with Staff’s recommendation the following motion is appropriate:

(MOTION ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

20



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY y THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $411,667 WITH GRAND
TRAVERSE CONSTRUCTION FOR THE HASTINGS STREET STORAGE FACILITY;
SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND TO

FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL.

FURTHER, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE WORK ORDERS
FOR SERVICES AND ADMINISTER AMENDMENTS AND CHANGE ORDERS THAT ARE IN

THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE LIGHT AND POWER DEPARTMENT

21




@@l

architecture | artistry | interiors

June 3, 2015

Traverse City Light and Power
1131 Hastings St.
Traverse City, MI 49686

Attn: Mr. Tim Arends, Executive Director

RE: Proposed New Equipment Storage Building Bid on June 2, 2015
Dear Tim,

I have reviewed the bids from the General, Mechanical and Electrical Bidders and have conducted post-
bid interviews with the low and second lowest bidders. Eckler Building Solutions was the low bidder.
TCLP has ongoing problems with the office addition they built in 2011. Eckler currently has completion
issues at St. Joseph’s Church and the Opera House projects. Eckler lists a down state company as his
conerete subcontractor. I much prefer to use area subs whenever possible as I have had bad experiences
with out-of-town subs not being responsive to correcting faulty work. This building has an exposed
concrete floor.

Grand Traverse Construction is the second low bidder. They have a very good reputation, do not have
any completion or other problem issues and they perform their own concrete work as well as other tasks.
The difference between the low and second low bids is $10,600.00

The other change [ recommend is using Bloxsom Roofing at an increase of $5,375.00. They were the

only roofer that bid the job as specified, the lower roofers did not. On bid day, everyone used the lower
bids.

ABI Mechanical is recommended for the mechanical work. They were the low bidder. Glen Lake
Electric dropped out today after my post bid interview as they missed the transformer and part of the
lighting. Advantage Electric is the second low bidder for electrical work.

I have reviewed Grand Traverse Construction’s schedule of values and discussed this with Derek Purgiel,
Project Manager. It appears complete.

I recommend a lump sum contract in the amount of $411,607.00 to Grand Traverse Construction in which
we assign ABI Mechanical and Advantage Electric as subcontractors as follows:

$358,600.00  Grand Traverse Construction- General Base Bid
$ 2,650.00 Add for trenching work

$§ 5.375.00 Add for Bloxsom Roofing

$366,625.00

robert j, sornmerville, AlA
1004 east 8th sireet, fiaverse dify, michigan 49686  231.947.0080 el 201.947.4720 fax

22



QI

architecture | artistry | interiors

$ 738200 ABI Mechanical- Mechanical
$ 37.600.00  Advantage Electric- Electrical
$411,607.00  Contract Sum

The Aprii 22 construction cost estimate for building and site work is $408,200. The $3,407 difference
will come out of the budgeted $38,300 contingency.

Upon the furnishing of required bonds and insurance certificate, we will prepare a contract for
canstruction.

S%incereW

Robert J. Sommerville, AIAE
RIS/jv

robert ). somemerville; AlA
1004 eqit 8ih sireet, fraverse city, michigan 49686  231.947.0080tel  201.947.4720 fox




00'000'6Y - 00'000°6Y - 00°000°6Y JHIIB(F J3[INWBPUIAA

00'SLL'SY - 00'SLL'SY - 00°'SLLSY d133(3 aun doy,

0000Z'0¢ - 00°00Z°0€ - 00°00Z'0¢€ B3T3 e LD

00°0ST'TY 00°0SS’E 00°009°LE - 00'009°LE 911993 a8eIuBAPY
sajeusale Suiysual) |e1439(3 1PNpag-sai] aHO 12npa( - Se pig aseg aped], |23

430q Yyim [BI0] pueig PUg [EJUBYISA 21eUIBY Yim [B10] dHO 1wy

00°008°0T 0000sC 00°00€°8 - 00°00£'8 207 pue suuy

00°£52°0T 00948 00°Z8¢'L - 00'Z8E’L [B21UBRYISIA 19
s3jeUIS}jR Suyouas] |BOMII[ 1hpag-sa3 gHO Npa( - s pig aseg aped] [ealueyIIN

4104 Yum |£10] puelis pue [e31ueydaal 912DV YiiMm |BIO] QHO 2IeWRY

00°00L'6S€E 0000Z°C 00°005°LS€E (00°00ST) 00°000°09¢ siay304g 2ouads

00°0059S€ apinoad jou pig 00'005°9s¢ (00°0052) 00°000°65€ uoudnaisue) Hew)jey

00°0S.'8S¢ 00°059°C 00°001°95¢€ (00°00s52) 00'009'8S€ UolonIIsuo) asisARI | puels

00°0ST'8PE 00°059'C 00°00S'StE (000052} 00°000°8vE suonnjos Suipiing 4923

00'180°62F 00°000°C 00'180°LTY {00°005°) 00 I856TY UOR2NIISUOT D035WoD)
Sa1BLID}E Fuiyauaay (221309]3 PNPag-sai gHO 39Nnpaq - S9N pig aseg apeli] |[eJaUID

30q YHm [BI0L pueln

pue [EUBYIIA|

QLI Yiim |E]O

QHO =1ewisl|y

STQC ‘T eunf
SS9y pig - Aujoe a8ei0ls
Jamod pue 14317 Al asieaRl]

24



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
EST, 1912
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 3, 2015
Subject: Pine Street Overhead to Underground Conversion - Union Street Conduit Installation

On June 2, 2015, two out of five solicited bidders were submitted, opened and reviewed for the Union St
conduit installation. This conduit installation is from the intersection from Union and State St south to
Lay Park and south to State Street alley to Cass Street Following is a summary of the bid submissions:

Vendor Amount
1. Severance Electric $257,744.75
2. Team Elmers $346,106.49

GRP Engineering, Inc. (“GRP”) recommends awarding the bid to the low bidder, Severance Electric, in
the amount of $257,744.75,

Staff concurs with GRP’s recommendation to accept the bid from Severance Electric, in the amount of
$257,744.75, and recommends the Board authorize the issuance of a contract for conduit instaliation.

For your review, attached is GRP’s letter recommending Severance Electric.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $257,744,75 WITH SEVERANCE
ELECTRIC FOR THE UNION STREET CONDUIT INSTALLATION; SUBJECT TO
APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND TO FORM BY
GENERAL COUNSEL.

FURTHER, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE WORK ORDERS
FOR SERVICES AND ADMINISTER AMENDMENTS AND CHANGE ORDERS THAT ARE IN

THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE LIGHT AND POWER DEPARTMENT

25




GRP

Engineering, inc. Power Utility & Electiical Engineering

June 2, 2015
12-0503.01

Mr. Tim Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, M1 49686

RE: Union Street Conduit Installation
Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Tim:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed reviewing the bids submitted on June 2, 2015 for the Union Street
Conduit TInstallation portion of the overall Pine & State Street Underground project. Of the five
contractors solicited for bids, two (2) bids were received. Severance Electric Company, Inc. submitted
the low bid for the project in the amount of $257,744.75. A complete bid tabulation is attached to this
letter.

Severance Electric Company, Inc. bid did not include a list of subcontractors. A list provided after the
bid opening was submitted and no objections were noted. GRP Engineering, Inc. sees no reason not to
accept their bid in the full amount for this project.

Please contact me should you have any questions regarding this evaluation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

TP Pl

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.
Project Manager

660 Cascade W Parkway SE Suite 65 459 Bay Street
Grand Rapids M| 49546 Petoskey MI 49770
P: 616.942.7183 wvav. grp-engineering.com P. 231.439.9683
F: 616.285.6448 F: 231.439.9698

20



Sh0g/T/a

I'd ‘UBYIIDIW "d 19BYDIN

921 Pig 1BISU| ENPUOD 1S UolLN

§ Ay

-ou] ‘Bussuibuy Jy9

L0'E050-2}

‘pe=y pue pauado Ajolgnd al1am ulaIay PaIBINGE) SPIG 84} 'GLOZ T SUNp "ABPSAN . UO S 1BI0] “UB00I0L JB Jeul Auuan of $1 siul

p!g oN

EZYEY | ‘PUElIOH
183415 Uigs €12V
WoD-191 WI93SaM

6%'90L'9veES puog %01

9696% IV AUD dsiaAR))
PY [0042S Bluuay 00sE
Siaw|3 weal

pig moT

[T AV ATAS puod %01

BYO6Y [N 'DoZRUBIEY

anuaay N '3 9201
D11J09| FOUBISAIG

pig ©N

S856Y [N 'AND 9SiaARIL

10 0US Mong 521
Buneaeox3 uojol

pig ©N

2588Y 1IN TUBSEA|d N
Amid JBACD £B6L
5133313 Joury T

SMUVINT Y

J01d4 dlg 3sve ALRIND3IS
HOLOVHINOD IVIOL aig

sy3aqig

0446% 1IN ‘AIMSOL3d
133418 AV 65P

"ONI ‘ONIYISNIONT duo
THIINIONT

NOILVTIVLSNI LINANOD 1334.).S NOINN

NOILVINGV.L aig

9896F IIN ‘ALID ISHIAVHL
133418 SONILSVH LELL

d3MOd B LHOIT ALID ISY3AVYL

HINMO

27



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director

Date: June 3, 2015

Subject: Pine Street Overhead to Underground Conversion - Electrical Cable and Equipment
Installation

On June 2, 2015, three bids out of four solicited bidders were submitted, opened and reviewed for the
electrical cable and equipment installation for the Pine Street Overhead to Underground Conversion
Project - Electrical Cable and Equipment Installation. This electrical cable and equipment installation is
for the undergrounding from Hall Street parking lot across the Boardman River along Pine Street, State
Street, and Union Street to Rivers Edge Drive and the State Street alley east to Cass Street.  Following is
a summary of the bid submissions:

Vendor Amount

1. CC Power, LI.C $781,378.00
2. Kent Power $499,479.34
3. Newkirk Electric, Inc. $691,191.58

GRP Engincering, Inc. (“GRP”) recommends awarding the bid to the low bidder Kent Power in the
amount of $499,479.34.

Staff concuwrs with GRP’s recommendation to accept the bid from Kent Power, in the amount of
$499,479.34, and recommends the Board authorize the issuance of a contract for the electrical cable and
equipment installation.

For your review, attached is GRP’s letter reccommending Kent Power.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be

appropriate:

(MOTION ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

28



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $499,479.34 WITH KENT POWER
FFOR THE PINE STREET OVERHEAD TO UNDERGROUND CONVERSION - ELECTRICAL
CABLE AND EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION; SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE
BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND TO FORM BY GENERAL COUNSEL.,

FURTHER, AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE WORK ORDERS
FOR SERVICES AND ADMINISTER AMENDMENTS AND CHANGE ORDERS THAT ARE IN

THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE LIGHT AND POWER DEPARTMENT

29




GRP

Engineering, Inc. Powar Uiility 4 Flectvical Enginearing

June 2, 2015
12-0503.01

Mr. Tim Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: Pine & State Street Underground
Electrical Cable & Equipment Installation
Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Tim;

GRP Engincering, Inc. has completed reviewing the bids submitted on June 2, 2015 for the Electrical
Cable & Equipment Installation portion of the Pine & State Street Underground project. Of the four
contractors solicited for bids, three (3) bids were received. Kent Power, Inc. submitied the low bid for
the project in the amount of $499,479.34. A complete bid tabulation is attached to this letter.

Kent Power, Inc. has submitted a complete and conforming bid. GRP Engineering, Inc, sees no reason
not to accept their bid in the full amount for this project.

Please contact me should you have any questions regarding this evaluation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc,

TP Plosdadl

Michael P. McGechan, P.E.

Project Manager
660 Cascade W Parkway SE Suite 65 459 Bay Street
Grand Rapids M| 49546 Petoskey MI 49770
P: 616.942.7183 vavw. grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683

F: 616.285.6448 F: 231.439.9698




5102729

'3 'UBYS9DI "d ISBYSINY

qel pig 9N 1S ABIS T 3uld

N FL

-au] ‘BunrsautBug dyo

:Ag

L0'e0S021

‘peas pue pauado Alongnd a1em uBIay pRIBINGE] SPIG 9y} '§LOZ ' auny 'ABPSan | Uo awiy (200 CUWBQDI0L 18 JBYI ALIE0 O] St SIYL

85'LBL'L69S

puog %01

Zrvey N ‘vobaysnyy |
j19aug speqoy 6/9!
*2U] ‘0132913 JAIHMIN

pig maT

YE'6L¥ 6518

puocg %01

0EE6Y 1AL "AND oY
1§ Buldg ng
PELLERIESY]

pig ON

Li96F N ‘AUD paay
189G YI0Y 'N 02
Auedwion axeleaypn-JoiepAH a1

00°8LE°1848

puog %ClL

IPSEY N ‘BYSENEY
20T X0d "O'd
omod 99

SHYVINTY

F0lud dlg 3svd
HOLOVHINOD IV1OL

ALIMNO3S
aig

sy3adig

0LL6% IN 'AIMSOLAL
133H1$ AvE 657

"ONI ‘ONINIINIONT d¥D
“d3INIDNI

NOLLYTIVLSNI INSNLIND3I 2 37avI 1vIRH13NE
GNNOYDOXEIAANN L33YLS 3LV.LS ¥ INId

NOILVINgVL dig

9896% 1IN ‘ALID ISUIAVYL
133HIS SONILSYH LELL

d3MOd 8 LHOF ALID ISYIAVIL

*HIANMO

31



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: June 4, 2015
Subject: Pine Street Overhead to Underground Conversion — Underground Cable

On June 2, 2015, three quotes were submitted for the underground cable to be used in the Pine Street
Overhead to Underground Conversion Project subject to project reauthorization at today’s meeting.

GRP Engineering Inc., (“GRP”) has evaluated the bids for the underground cable for the Pine Street
Overhead to Underground Conversion and recommends Power Line Supply, low bidder at $407,928, 4%
below the estimated unit cost of $15.40. The actual price paid may be higher or lower based on the price
of copper the day of purchase.

Vendor Unit Price Conductor Reel Return  Metals Price Adjustment
1. HD Supply $15.71 $433,596.00 None Yes
2. Power Line Supply $14.78 $407,928.00 None Yes
3. RESCO $19.50 $538,200.00 None Yes

Staff concurs with GRP’s recommendation to accept the bid from Power Line Supply, in the amount of
$407,928.00 and recommends the Board authorize the issuance of a purchase order for the materials.

For your review, attached is GRP’s letter recommending Power Line Supply.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY , THAT THE

BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A PURCHASE ORDER TO
POWER LINE SUPPLY IN THE AMOUNT OF $407,928 MORE OR LESS FOR
UNDERGROUND CABLE FOR THE PINE STREET OVERHEAD TO UNDERGROUND

CONVERSION PROJECT,

32



Engineering, Inc. Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

June 2, 2015
12-0503.01

M. Tim Arends

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: Pine & State Street Underground
Underground Cable Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Tim:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the medium voltage underground cable quotes
for the Pine & State Street Underground project. Three material vendors provided quotes for the
27,600’ of cable required for this project. Power Line Supply (PLS) & HD Supply quoted Okonite
cable, RESCO quoted Kerite cable. Quotations were requested to be submitted with a copper metals
base price of $3.00 per pound to insure evaluation of quotes on the same base.

Vendor Cost/ft Total Cost
HD Supply $15.71 $433,596.00
Power Line Supply  $14.78 $407,928.00
RESCO $19.50 $538,200.00

All cost estimates for this project were based on $15.40 per foot cable price, 4% higher than the quoted
price. Reminder that the actual cable cost will be adjusted higher or lower based on the price of copper
on the day of shipment. For reference, the cost of copper at the time of the writing of this
recommendation is $2.7375 per pound which is 9% lower than the amount the evaluation was completed
on.

GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends that TCL&P accept the quote from Power Line Supply. Please
contact me should you have any additional questions regarding this evaluation and recommendation,

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc,

TSP Pheshedd.

Michael P, McGeehan, P.E.

Project Manager
660 Cascade W Parkway SE Suite 65 459 Bay Strest
Grand Rapids Ml 49546 Petoskey M| 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683

F: 616.285.6448 F: 231.439.9698




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

Sl 19]‘?

5

100 YEARS

.

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To:
From:
Date:
Subject:

Light & Power Board

W. Peter Doren, General Counsel
June 3, 2015

Executive Director Contract

At your last meeting the Human Resources Committee distributed a report and back-up
materials recommending changes to the Executive Director’'s Contract and Job Description.
Those changes were as follows:

1.

2.

Increase annual salary from $113,400 to $118,500.

If the annual performance review by the Board showed satisfactory
performance, automatic increases of 3% in salary would occur on the first
(20186}, second (2017), and third (2018) anniversaries of the agreement.

The Board would have discretion in additional annual increases based on
performance reviews, market salary levels or other utility conditions.

The job description would be modified. Those changes are shown in redline
format on the attached.

Attached is a revised Executive Director’s Contract reflecting the recommended changes.

If you agree with the Committee’s recommendations, the following would be in order:

MOVED BY

, SECONDED BY '

TO APPROVE THE JUNE 9, 2015, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AGREEMENT - 2015
CONTAINING THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES
COMMITTEE.

34




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER
JOB DESCRIPTION

TITLE: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The City Charter mandates basic duties of the Executive Director. Many of these are contained
in Charter Sections 178 and 179.

General Summary:

Provide leadership for Light and Power Department that assures: the highest level of satisfaction
and competitive rates for customers, a safe productive and motivated staff, the short-term and
long-term strategic direction, a positive and cooperative relationship with all Light and Power
stakeholders, and sound management of both human and fiscal resources.

Typical Duties:

1. Create an organizational climate that enables the Utility staff to be productive, motivated,
and to work safely and cooperatively.

2. Assist the Board in carrying out its duties to establish policies that lead to excellence in:
customer service, operational efficiency, and employee relations. After those policies are
established, make sure they are implemented fairly and consistently in the Utility.

2.3, Develop. implement and maintain Department goals. objectives. policies and
priorities; ensure that established goals and priorities are achieved.

3-4. Prepare and present issues for Board consideration and action, including
assistance with agenda preparation and keeping accurate record of Board proceedings.

4.3. Assure that the Utility’s generation, transmission and distribution systems are
operationally efficient, reliable and safe. Further, the Utility’s purchased power must be
reliable, competitively priced, and adequate to meet the future needs of all customers.

5:6. Demonstrate sound fiscal management including: budgeting, accounting, and real

estate and personal property assets-and-investment-ofreserves.

6:7. Represent the Utility with all external agencies and regulatory bodies (i.e.
Michigan Public Power Agency, Michigan Municipal Electric Association, American
Public Power Association, Michigan Public Service Commission, OSHA, Environmental
Protection Agency, Department of Natural Resources, etc.)

7-8. Complete, with assistance from the-CityPersonnel Department;-Light and Power

Human Resources, the hiring, training, promotion and termination of Utility staff. Be
directly responsible for the performance management and professional development of all

35




directly reporting staff. The Executive Director may appoint or remove a Controller only
with a concurring vote of five members of the Board.

8:9. Contract with, supervise, and coordinate the activities of all external service
providers to the Utility (i.e. legal, construction, professional services, etc.)

9:10. Work cooperatively within the city government framework, especially where
other City Departments provide service to the Utility and where the Utility provides
services to the City.

+0:11. Regularly and frequently collaborate with and exchange information with the City

Manager. This collaboration shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

a. The City Manager should be given an opportunity to participate in labor and

administrative negotiations.

b. The City Manager (or designee) should be encouraged to attend all TCL&P staff

meetings and the Director (or designee) is encouraged to attend all City staff meetings.
bichi lj lgE] iol gip .IEi '!.j I I

d. The City Manager should be considered the acting TCL&P Director in the event

the Director is absent for extended periods.

+H=12. Assure that the activities provided on a contractual basis to other agencies are
carried out effectively and efficiently.

12:13. Act as the chief spokesperson for the Utility with media, customers, city
government and other critical stakeholders.

13:14. Plan for and implement a personal plan for professional development, in
conjunction with Board feedback, to assure preparedness for leading the Utility into the
future with innovation and creativity.

14:15. Create and change, as needed, the organizational structure, reporting
relationships, and job roles to achieve both staff job satisfaction and organizational

effectiveness and efficiency.

1+5:16. Perform other duties as may be assigned by the Light and Power Board.

36




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT and POWER
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
AGREEMENT - 2015

THIS AGREEMENT made this 9™ day of June, 2015, by and between the TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT and POWER DEPARTMENT, a Michigan municipal electric utility, 1131 Hastings Street,
Traverse City, Michigan 49686, (the Board) and TIMOTHY J. ARENDS, of 10176 Elk Lake Trail,
Williamsburg, Michigan 49690, (the Executive Director) it supersedes and replaces all previous
agreements between the parties;

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to retain the services of Timothy J, Arends as Executive
Director; and

WHEREAS, Timothy J. Arends wishes to be employed by the Board in the capacity of
Executive Director; and

WHEREAS, it is to the advantage of both the employer and the employee to specity the
conditions under which the employee is to work and to be compensated,;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by the parties as follows:

1. Employment. The Board hereby employs Timothy J. Arends as the Executive
Director, and Timothy J. Arends hereby accepts such employment upon the terms and conditions
hereinafter set forth. This Agreement supersedes all previous employment agreements between the
patties.

2. Applicable Laws. This Agreement is subject to all applicable laws and administrative
rules bearing upon the parties and the subject matter of this Agreement as such law may be in effect
from time to time, including without limitation, the Charter of the City of Traverse City, and such
law is incorporated herein by reference. In the event of conflict between the provisions of this
Agreement and such applicable law, such applicable law shall control.

3. Term. This Agreement shall commence on June 9, 2015, and shall continue thereafter
until termination, amendment or renegotiation, The parties intend to renegotiate the terms hereof'to
be effective with the anniversary of this Agreement.

4, Compensation. For all services rendered by the Executive Director under this
Agreement, the Board shall pay the Executive Director an annual salary of ONE HUNDRED
EIGHTEEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($118,500}) effective the first day of the
term, to be paid in the same manner and intervals as regular full-time management employees
effective as of the commencement date of this Agreement. [fthe annual review by the Board shows
satisfactory performance by the Executive Director, there shall be a 3% increase in pay as of this

1

37




Agreement’s first anniversary (2016}, second anniversary (2017), and third anniversary (2018).
Additional annual increases may be given in the Board’s discretion based on performance reviews,
market salary levels or other utility conditions.

5. Termination. Either party has the right to terminate the employment relationship at
any time and in the sole discretion of the party terminating the relationship, upon sixty (60) days
advance notice or the equivalent of sixty (60) calendar days pay or a portion thereof, where no notice
or less than sixty (60) days notice is given. However, in the event the Executive Director is
terminated because of conviction of a felony or any illegal act involving personal gain, the Board
shall have no obligation to give advance notice or the alternative severance pay.

6. Duties. In addition to the duties enumerated in the City Charter, the Executive
Director shall be the Chief Administrative Officer for the Department and the Board. The Executive
Director shall direct all employees of the Department and such others as the Board shall direct. The
attached description of the Executive Director’s responsibilities, attached hereto as Attachment A, is
the present determination and may be relied upon by the Executive Director. However, the Board
may from time to time, by resolution, alter this description of the Executive Director’s
responsibilities, provided that such alterations shall not be effective until a copy of such resolution
shall be delivered to the Executive Director.

7. Extent of Services. The Executive Director shall devote his professional time,
attention and energies to the business of the Traverse City Light and Power Department. In order to
discharge the functions of the office of Executive Director, early morning, luncheon and night-time
meetings and activities may occur outside regular office hours that require the Executive Director’s
attendance.

8. Conventions and Seminars. With the prior approval of the Chairperson of the Board,
the Executive Director may attend seminars and conventions relating to utility management for
technology and other matters involved in the discharging of the responsibilities of the office of
Executive Director. The Department shall pay for or reimburse the Executive Director for expenses
in connection with such seminars and conventions as per Board policy up to the amount authorized
in the budget. Days used in attending seminars and conventions shall be regarded as days worked.

9. Vacations. The Executive Director shall be entitled to vacation time which shall
accrue on the basis of 25 days per year of employment. It may be used during the term of this
Agreement. During such vacation time, compensation will be paid in full. Accrued vacation time
may be accrued up to a maximum of 200 hours in the same manner as Department ACT employees.

10.  Civic Organizations and Responsibilities. The Board encourages membership of the
Executive Director in local civic organizations and in executing civic responsibilities. The Board
agrees to reimburse the Executive Director for dues and reasonable expenses incurred in membership
in one local recognized civic organization involved in public service. In addition, the Executive
Director shall have the discretion to expend an amount not to exceed Five Hundred dollars ($500)
pet year to participate in, or attend, those civic events or functions which appropriately assist him in
meeting these civic responsibilities.

38




11.  Other Benefits. Except as modified herein, the Executive Director shall enjoy all such
other fringe benefits afforded to Department ACT employees as of the effective date of this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, retirement, deferred compensation plan and short and long
term disability coverage.

12, Assignment. This Agreement is not assignable by either party hereto.
13.  Waiver of Breach. A waiver by the Board of a breach by the Executive Director of

any provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent
breach by the Executive Director.

14.  Non-Discrimination. The Executive Director agrees not to discriminate against an
employee or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of
employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment because of their actual or
perceived race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, marital status, physical or
mental disability, family status, sexual orientation, or gender identity. Breach of this covenant may
be regarded as a material breach of this Agreement.

15.  Car Allowance. In addition to other compensation, the Executive Director shall
receive THREE HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($350) per calendar month as car allowance,
Mileage reimbursement shall also be paid for travel in accordance with the Board's Use of Personal
Vehicle for L&P Business Policy. The Executive Director shall at all times maintain insurance
covering property damage and public liability for such motor vehicle in the combined single limit of
$500,000.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date and
year first above written.

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT and POWER BOARD

John Taylor, Chairperson

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Timothy J. Arends

Approved as to form:

W. Peter Doren, General Counsel

39




ATTACHMENT A

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER
JOB DESCRIPTION

TITLE: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The City Charter mandates basic duties of the Executive Director. Many of these are contained
in Charter Sections 178 and 179.

General Summary:

Provide leadership for Light and Power Department that assures: the highest level of satisfaction
and competitive rates for customers, a safe productive and motivated staff, the short-term and
long-term strategic direction, a positive and cooperative relationship with all Light and Power
stakeholders, and sound management of both human and fiscal resources,

Typical Duties:

1. Create an organizational climate that enables the Ultility staff to be productive, motivated,
and to work safely and cooperatively.

2. Assist the Board in carrying out its duties to establish policies that lead to excellence in:
customer service, operational efficiency, and employee relations. After those policies are
established, make sure they are implemented fairty and consistently in the Utility.

3. Develop, implement and maintain Department goals, objectives, policies and priorities;
ensure that established goals and priorities are achieved.

4, Prepare and present issues for Board consideration and action, including assistance with
agenda preparation and keeping accurate record of Board proceedings.

5. Assure that the Utility’s generation, transmission and distribution systems are
operationally efficient, reliable and safe. Further, the Utility’s purchased power must be

reliable, competitively priced, and adequate to meet the future needs of all customers.

6. Demonstrate sound fiscal management including: budgeting, accounting, and real estate
and personal property assets.

7. Represent the Utility with all external agencies and regulatory bodies (i.e. Michigan
Public Power Agency, Michigan Municipal Electric Association, American Public Power

40



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Association, Michigan Public Service Commission, OSHA, Envirommental Protection
Agency, Departiment of Natural Resources, etc.)

Complete, with assistance from Light and Power Human Resources, the hiring, training,
promotion and termination of Utility staff. Be directly responsible for the performance
management and professional development of all directly reporting staff. The Executive
Director may appoint or remove a Controller only with a concurring vote of five members
of the Board.

Contract with, supervise, and coordinate the activities of all external service providers to
the Utility (i.e. legal, construction, professional services, etc.)

Work cooperatively within the city government framework, especially where other City
Departments provide service to the Utility and where the Utility provides services to the

City.

Regularly and frequently collaborate with and exchange information with the City

Manager. This collaboration shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

a. The City Manager should be given an opportunity to participate in labor and
administrative negotiations.

b. The City Manager (or designee) should be encouraged to attend all TCL&P staff
meetings and the Director (or designee) is encouraged to attend all City staff
meetings.

¢, The City Manager should be considered the acting TCL&P Director in the event
the Director is absent for extended periods.

Assure that the activities provided on a contractual basis to other agencies are carried out
effectively and efficiently.

Act as the chief spokesperson for the Utility with media, customers, city government and
other critical stakeholders.

Plan for and implement a personal plan for professional development, in conjunction with
Board feedback, to assure preparedness for leading the Utility into the future with
innovation and creativity.

Create and change, as needed, the organizational structure, reporting relationships, and
job roles to achieve both staff job satisfaction and organizational effectiveness and

efficiency.

Perform other duties as may be assigned by the Light and Power Board.

41



Traverse City Light & Power

*Human Resources Comimittee Memo®

Date: 5/26/20015

To:  TCL&P Board

From: TCL&P HR Committee

Re:  Tim Arends — Annual contract and compensation review/adjustment

The HR Committee (Bob Spence, John Taylor and Barb Budros) met on 5/22/15 to
evaluate the performance of TCLP’s Executive Director, Tim Arends, and to recommend
any changes to Mr. Arends’ contract for the coming year.

In addition to experiential understanding, the HR Committee referenced the following
(all attached):
1. Mary Grover’s Report, dated 5/8/15
2. A National Salary Summary, specific to Publicly Owned Utilities
3. Tim Arends’ contract and staff’s proposed changes to Attachment A - Job
Description

Upon consideration, it is the recommendation of the HR Committee that the Board do
the following:

¢ Increase Mr. Arends’ salary from $113,400 to $118,500. This represents an
approximate 5% increase. This level is suggested based on a commendable
performance review. It will also move him into the (low) range of comparable
salaries in our market.

e Establish a minimum 3% salary increase for the next 3 years, based on a
satisfactory performance review by the Board. Increases above that level to be
determined by performance, market salary levels and industry/utility conditions.

e Adopt the noted changes in the Executive Director’s Job Description and to be
included as Attachment A with Mr. Arends’ renewed contract.

Thank you

CC: Bob Spence
Barb Budros
John Taylor
Tim Arends
Stephanie Tvardek
Kelli Schroeder

42




MEMORANDUM (#3)

To: Members, Traverse City Light and Power Board

Copy to: Tim Arends, Peter Doren and Penny Hill

From: Mary M. Grover

Subj: Data from the Assessment lntei‘views re the Annual Performance

Evaluation of the TCL&P Executive Director
Date: May 8, 2015

This is the third time I've been asked to help the Board with its duty of an annual
performance evaluation of the Executive Director. My assessment is that this is a high
functioning Board with members who are satisfied with their work, their leader and the
organization. This time, more than the others, [ was struck by Board members’ confidence
in their understanding of the utility business and in TCL&P’s position as a municipal utility.
It appears the training you have undergone and the work you did developing and updating
the Strategic Plan has paid off.

The first assessment interview question was, “What is the Executive Director
particularly good at?’ Communication is a common response theme, and developing
strategies to encourage communication. Notjust one-way communication with the ED
expounding on what he knows or what he thinks needs to be done. It's better than that; as
one respondent said,

[Tim] has a realistic and honest approach to problems; doesn’t
try to hide anything. Listens to and considers rational opposing
arguments.

Question #10 elicited interesting responses. You were asked, “Do you see value in
assigning a letter grade to the performance of the ED? If you do, what grade would you give
him for his performance this past year?’ Although nobody liked giving Tim a letter grade,
four recognized that a letter grade might have value for Tim, and four assigned letter
grades that ranged from A- to B. A common phrase was “nobody is perfect” which seemed
to preclude giving Tim a straight A. Nevertheless, the general consensus was, as one
respondent said, “Tim’s work is outstanding.”

I recommend that you give consideration to the thoughtful responses to questions
## 9 and 11. No doubt some are familiar themes, e.g. “a legitimate survey” and, among the
responses to question #9, TCL&P is “a cash-generating department of the City.” Butalso
consider:

e Strategic communication is the next step for Tim. His excellent communication and
outreach skills could be applied to the community, to provide leadership in
educating people about upcoming and big utility issues, about TCL&P's possibilities
and limitations.

e It would be good for the Board to have a discussion, out of the heat of battle, about
our differing philosophies regarding allocation of funding for projects that are

43



Page 2
Memo #3 to TCL&P Board
May 8, 2015

beyond the scope of L&P. We need a policy to help us treat funding requests evenly,
consistently, with reasonable justification.

o In the future, a utility has to figure out how to increase renewable energy that is
beneficial to the grid. We do it now because we have to. Also, our grid needs to be
more resilient.

¢ Internally, we need to resolve the tension with the union.

¢ In the budgets for capitol improvement and construction projects, occasionally
there are inaccuracies.

»  When we approve bids and with project completion final payments, we need to see
comparisons of initial budgets and actual costs.

e Re staff reports: With training, staff could be more effective. Have them sit in the
seats of the Board to help them determine what Board members need to know.

¢ When we begin the implementation phase of the Wayne Hill project, there will be
tension between L&P and the neighbors.

This is an effective Board that is made up of people who bring different perspectives
to the table and who are, nevertheless, respectful of each other. May you continue to give
your Executive Director the support he needs to continue his good work, and to grow into a
leader in a larger context, that you see.

It was a privilege and my pleasure to do this work for you. Thank you for the
opportunity.



. @»

2 & @ o _L\J

Assessment Data from Interviews with TCL&P Board Members
2015 Performance Evaluation of the TCL&P Executive Director
May 8, 2015

What is the Fxecutive Director (ED) particularly good at?

He’s good at communicating, as on the Wayne Street transmission project. All stakeholders had
a chance to speak and to ask questions.

Wayne Street was a very public process, and people were heard.

The Wayne Hill process was engaging and transparent.

Communicating with the Board, our customers and the public.

He's organized and is good at communicating; he has a good understanding of how a MUNI
works, how the City works and how they work together.

He's good at finding partners and finding ways to work together.

He has a realistic and honest approach to problems; doesn’t try to hide anything. Listens to and
considers rational opposing arguments. _

Tim is good at handling conflict: he's prepared for the issues, answers questions directly, and
diffuses tempers.

He consults with and listens to many others in a reflective and sincere way. This is important
for the job, and it's natural to Tim.

Organizational control by being prepared and organized; he anticipates road blocks.

Good problem solver, and he comes up with workable alternatives.

He's knowledgeable, answers my questions with quick responses, provides information ina
fimely manner.

What have been the ED’s (and the Board’s) major accomplishments in the past year?

The Wayne Street transmission line. It was an old issue and it had to be resolved.

The west (Wayne St.) transmission line process and results were good. Tim managed the
process well, gracefully.

The Wayne Hill process was open and transparent, and people were heard. Some people
weren’t happy with the outcome, but it was time for the Board to make a decision.

The Hickory Hills-Wayne Street transmission line. The process worked well and we were ahle
to accomplish something other Boards didn't.

The west side transmission line, the strategic plan and moving on implementation; getting
construction projects done. ,
Having a plan to upgrade an old system, e.g. upgrades of infrastructure, east side and south side
substations.

We adopted a comprehensive strategic plan and we're working on implementing it.

The energy supply issue, as TCL&P is a purchaser and the contract with LBW&L is expiring. it
was a slow but thorough process that resulted in the Board understanding the issue and
arriving at a good result,

Are the annual budget and financial reporting processes working effectively?

Yes. (2)

Yes. It was the right balance.

Yes. Tim leoks ahead; the quarterly reports are helpful.

Yes. Karlais doing a great job providing us her thorough analyses; her periodic reporting on
financials is helpful. The budget process went smoothly this year - Tim looks ahead atissues
and starts early. _

Yes, it's an opportunity for input, and we get information ahead of time so there aren’t surprises
later on.

Explanations are in understandable layman’s language and we're moving through the capital
improvement plan.

45



e & & .

o

Are staff reports to the Board (including contractor presentations) timely and informative? Too
long? About right?

About right. (3}

It's fine. It's good to get staff in front of the Board.

They're timely and informative, This isn’t a big deal, but some staff seem to take longer than
necessary, reading point by peint. Training would help them understand what we need to
know.

1 don’t mind in-depth information, but it's OK if staff only hit the high-lights of their reports.

I understand why we have staff reports and what would happen if we didn’t; they're a
necessary evil because the Board has oversight responsibility.

Is the ED accessible to answer your questions?
Yes. (5)

Yes, almost 24 /7.

Yes. Tim and Karla are both very responsive,

Are the TCL&P employees, the ED and the Board working together effectively?

Yes. Board members bring a variety of perspectives. Can’t evaluate how well Tim works with
staff except for a recent letter from a retiring employee, but Tim provided reasonable
explanations about the complaints. The employees I interact with seem happy with the
organization.

Yes, but there is tension with and within the union. Tim’s coordination with the City is good.
Yes, as | have no evidence to the contrary except for a letter from a departing employee, and
Tim provided a detailed response that satisfied me that it was one person complaining.
Seems like we are, although sometimes there’s grumbling from employees. But it's going fine.
Employees have a good culture, knowing the Board is demanding. They seem to be working
together better because Tim is transparent.

I don’t have much contact with staff but we have goals and we’re working toward
accomplishing them.

To the best of my knowledge.

Are you confident in the ED’s ability to implement the strategic plan? Has he chosen competent
staff to carry it out?

Yes. {3)

Yes, staff is more than competent.

Yes. Tim takes his time, educates folks, engages staff in implementation.

Yes, implementation is underway; we have a good roadmap that we're following.

I'm not aware of any shortcomings. -

Does it seem to you that the public perception of and confidence in TCL&P have become more
positive, or less? (Or the same?}

In the absence of a legitimate survey, I reject the premise of quantifying public perception.
Individual complaints are individual opinions. Directors are too quick to say they know what the
public wants.

More; we don’t hear people complaining as much. It helps that Tim is open and transparent.
We don't hear from the public as much, although there are always pressures for us to go beyond
the scope of L&P.

The public is probably unaware of us, which is good.

More, because we're generating more good will.

Not sure; people seem satisfied.

Our visibility is better, and we're embracing technology.

46



10.

11,

2 & & & & 2

Is there anything you would like the Executive Director to change, improve, or do differently?

No.

Strategic communication is the next step for Tim. His excellent communication and outreach
skills could be applied to the community, to provide leadership in educating people about
upcoming and big utility issues, about TCL&P’s possibilities and limitations.

Tim was a great choice for ED; he’s prepared and on top of a lot of things and [ hope he keeps on
doing it.

Nothing comes to mind. Internally, we need to resolve the tension with the union,

Be open to looking at options that would be in the best interests of the City rather than keeping
L&P as is.

I'm generally happy with Tim; we're upgrading our systems which is important, but we're a
cash-generating department of the City.

In the budgets for capitol improvement and construction projects, occasionally there are
inaccuracies.

When we approve bids and at project completion final payments, we need to see comparisons
of initial budgets and actual costs.

Do you see value in assigning a letter grade to the performance of the ED? Ifyou do, what grade
would you give him for his performance this past year?

It’s hard to give a grade of perfection because it’s totally subjective, so A minus.

[ have no strong opinion about the value of a letter grade. Without context, a letter grade could
be misleading. Nevertheless, Tim’'s work is outstanding,

1 dor’t see value in a letter grade because they have different meanings to different people.

A letter grade doesn’t have value for me because an evaluation requires more than a letter
grade. However, a letter grade might have value for Tim,

Aletter grade might have value for Tim; I'd give him a B.

The value is only if a letter grade has value to Tim. I'd give him a B+.

B+.

Is there anything else you’d like to tell me about the performance of the Executive Director, the
Board or the organization?

It would be good for the Board to have a discussion, out of the heat of battle, about our differing
philosophies regarding allocation of funding for projects that are beyond the scope of L&P, We
need a policy to help us treat funding requests evenly, consistently, with reasonable
justification.

We need to do a legitimate survey of ratepayers to find out what they want us to do.

Re staff reports: With training, staff could be more effective. Have them sit in the seats of the
Board to help them determine what Beard members need to know.

In the future, a utility has to figure out how to increase renewable energy that is beneficial to
the grid. We do it now because we have to. Also, our grid needs to be more resilient.

Not really; he’s not growing the over head which is good.

We should be looking at the options that are out there for L&P.

Tim has done a good job.

Tim has grown on the job.

He does a good job in dealing with the union.

An important hire is coming up: a chief engineer.

When we begin the implementation phase of the Wayne Hill project, there will be tension
between L&P and the neighbors.

47




II, National Salary Summaries

Table 2A is a national summary of all occupations surveyed.

General Manager

Assistant General Manager
Chief Engineer

Director of Power Supply Planning
Steam Plant Superintendent®
Supervisory Engineer**

Line Division Superintendent***
Construction Superintendent
Chief Financial Manager
Chief Accountant

Rate Analyst

Personne! Director

Director of Customer Services
Information Systems Manager
Communications Director
Staff Legal Counsel

Fuels Manager

Purchasing Director
Marketing Director

Key Accounts Manager
Telecom/Broadband Manager
Energy Seivices Director

Number of
Responses
322
109
114
57
66
163
256
77
237
103
32
110
154
125
58
39
18
90
25
57
44
36

s “Table 2A: Annual Salarles, by Occupation
Publlcly Owned Utihﬂes (Excludmg Joint Action A

Mean
136,531
121,426
113,083
132,763
93,184
92,073
87,4786
93,785
103,581
86,758
88,678
97,041
84,141
98,603
92,788
132,514
119,408
77,304
83,506
85,149
101,933
103,790

gencies), May 2014
First '

Quartile | Median
90,851 | 118,286
88,500 | 108,564
90,546 | 108,394
115,104 | 130,406
66,682 | 95,950
69,347 1 87,550
65,977 | 84,168
75,006 1 92,000
72,000 { 93,738
67,059 | 78,000
82,369 | 90,866
71,560 { 88,279
60,686 | 74,702
78,080 | 90,730
70,008 | 86,036
104,546 1 127,700
90,245 | 118,136
55,050 | 71,451
69,659 | 91,865
68,244 | 83,460
87,145 | 101,587
70,893 | 94,637

Third
Quartile
169,432
135,616
129,979
147,066
117,316
107,984
100,236
107,181
121,155
100,133

98,063
115,453
100,539
116,400
112,237
152,251
130,926
92,559
114,854
99,028
120,748
125,683

*Production Superintendent salaries for utilities with $15 million or less in electric revenues are
included in this occupational classification
**Operatlons Superintendent sataries for utilities with $15 million or less in electric revenues are
included in this occupational classification
*+|ine Superintendent salaries for utilities with $15 miflion or less in electric revenues are
included in this occupational classification

48



General Managers only are reported by revenue class in table 2B and by customers served in table

2C. Journeyman Electric Lineworker data are shown in tables 2D and 2E. (All salaries are in

dollars.) Please note that for General Managers we now ask for total compensation, including

bonuses and other forms of compensation (excluding vehicle allowances).

Revenue Class
(in millions)
Less than $3
$3t0 36
$6 to $10
$10t0 $15
$15t0 $25
%25 to 3505
$50 to $100
$100 or more

Number of

Responses

34
30
41
33
46
67
36
35

Mean
62,242
87,490
105,093
120,458
120,385
147,939
161,932
275,966

First
Quariile
40,728
71,231
86,528
97,000

(o0 (B> | Cooan>

725
176,060

" Table 2B: General Manager Annual Compensation, by Revenue Class
Publicly Owned Electric Utilities (Excluding Joint Action Agencies), May 2014

Median
70,000
83,859
108,963
110,573
111,444
139,89
162,893
219,000

Third
Quartile
79,859
96,250
124,139
139,650
136,668
159,328
179,342

300,320

— Table 2C: General:Manager-Annual- Compensation by-Customer Size Class -

Publicly Owned Utilities (Excluding Joint Action Agencies), May 2014

Customers
Less than 1,000
1,000 to 2,000
2,000 to 4,000
4,000 to 10,000

20,000 to 40,000
40,000 to 100,000
100,000 or more

10,000 to 20,000

Number of
Responses
19
27
46
101
53
40
22
14

Mean
58,894
75,712
94,561
118,998

159,402
184,413
403,262

First
Quartile
28,144
70,580
79,517
98,763

128,838
159,198

271,705

{118,768)

Median
45,911
78,437
89,824
112.507

162,872
178,272
377,508

Third
Quartlle
72,365

84,079
112,310
136,837
180,720
178,319
212,780
449 553

49




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board ( @)
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director d|
Date: May 22, 2015

Subject: APPA’s Reliable Public Power Provider Awarded to TCL&P

“Promote employer and worker awareness of, commitment to, and involvement with safety to
effect positive change in the workplace culture through cooperative efforts and strong leadership”
is a goal highlighted in the Strategic Plan under High Quality Workforce. In keeping with this
goal, staff re-applied for the Reliable Public Power Provider Award Program (RP3) in September
2014. RP3 is the American Public Power Association’s (APPA) program to encourage public
power systems to demonstrate basic proficiency in four important disciplines: reliability, safety,
workforce development, and system improvement. Along with the application, each utility is
required to submit supporting documentation demonstrating its commitment to a safe and reliable
delivery of services in the above four areas. Applications were reviewed by the RP3 Review Panel
comprised of eight officers from four APPA committees (HR, Safety, Transmission & Distribution
and System Planning) along with seven members nominated by APPA’s Chairperson of the Board
of Directors whom represent small, medium and large utility systems.

Of the nation’s more than 2,000 public power utilities, 191 have earned RP3 recognition from
APPA for providing its customers with the highest degree of reliable and safe electric service;
TCL&P is proud not only to have earned this designation from APPA for a second consecutive
term, but to have improved upon its status by achieving the “Platinum” designation, the second
highest designation. This award was achievable only through the hard work and dedication of the
staff and employees of TCL&P. TCL&P received official recognition for their efforts at the 2015
Engineering and Operations Technical Conference last month in Sacramento, CA.

The RP3 designation is valid from May 2015
until early 2018. In September 2017 staff
plans to re-apply in order to maintain this
prestigious designation by APPA. Along with
the RP3 designation, TCL&P received
valuable feedback from the Review Panel that
will provide ideas for improving TCL&P’s
continued effort to enhance the utility’s goal
of providing safe, reliable, low cost
electricity.

Rod Solak, TCL&P Line Superintendent pictured center with Kenneth Stone, energy services and accounting manager
al Braintree Electric Light Department of Braintree, Mass., (L) and Mike Hyland, APPA senior vice president of
engineering services (R).



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board

From: Jessica Wheaton, Manager of Energy Services & Key Accounts C@Q
Date: June 1, 2015

Subject: Solar on Hastings Street Storage Facility

At the April 14, 2015 Board meeting, the Board authorized staff to seek bids for the Hastings Street
Storage Facility. The Board also asked staff to collect pricing for the installation of a 30kW solar
array on the roof of the storage facility.

After reaching out to two solar installation contractors, [ found that they would provide an average or
“going” price for solar installation, but would not invest additional time in preparing a quote without
knowing if the project was actually going to be built.

Detailed below is the pricing staff collected. Contractor 1 and 2 are new and contractor 3 is the
pricing breakdown of the estimate presented to the board on April 14, The pricing below does not
include the cost of adding a guardrail around the roof which would be required.

Estimated | Estimated | Payback (yrs) | Payback (yrs) | Payback (yrs)
per Watt | Project Cost | Community | Net Metering: | Net Metering:
Installed | 30kW Array Solar Commercial Commercial
Price Demand Rate Rate
Contractor 1 | $2.75 $ 82,500.00 | 36.47 48.1 23.44
Contractor 2 | $3.50 $105,000.00 | 46.42 61.22 29.83
Contractor 3 | $3.07 $ 92,000.00 | 40.67 53.64 26.14

The payback was calculated using the actual 2014 generation numbers from the Community Solar
Project located at Cherryland Electric Cooperative.

Considering a solar panei’s output decreases, on average, 3% a year and that the average life
expectancy of a solar array is 25 years, it does not make financial sense to proceed with installing
solar on the storage facility at this time. The storage facility is being built to structuraily hold a solar
array if/when there comes a time that the investment makes sense. Unless directed differently, staff
will not pursue having solar installed on the roof of the storage facility in the immediate future.

51




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF JUNE 9, 2015

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board ‘
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller L
Date: May 22, 2015

Subject: Quarterly Financial Report

Enclosed in your packet are the third quarter financial statements for the Electric and Fiber Funds.

Electric Utility Fund:
As of March 31, 2015 (75% through the fiscal year) operating revenues are 78.36% of budgeted operating
revenues.

Total operating expenses are at 68.92% of budget year-to-date, coming in lower than expected with purchase
power costs at 69.44% lower than expected attributed to excess transmission rights used by other MPPA entities
and excess energy sold on the MISO market, distribution costs at 63.31% with substation contracted
maintenance not yet incurred, transportation expenses budgeted not incorporating capitalization of these costs at
an hourly state rate greater than their monthly rate, traffic signals budgeted to replace that have not occurred to
date, along with no storm work to date, and operational supplies expense not fully expended. Public service
expense at 50.13% with the energy optimization funds not fully expended.

Net income through the third quarter is $4.3 million, which is approximately $793,000 increase over the prior
year.

Cash flows shows approximately $5.6 million expended in capital assets, mostly for the South Substation capital
project.

Fiber Fund:

Revenues in the Fiber Fund are on-budget while expenses are 91.42% of budget year-to-date. Salaries and
related fringe benefits attribute to the higher percentage than 75%, time through the fiscal year, because of more
time being allocated to fiber maintenance during the fiscal year than expected. Additionally, the WIFI
Operations and Maintenance expense was not included in the budget. The Fund has a net income or change in
net position of $32,453 or 44.98% of budgeted net income.

52



53

%bs 96 TIES §82°C9C 009 1LT 6v0°LY 6£T961 $8T'€9T (2e9'8s) 06%'52 89891 sosuadxs Jomod aseyand uoN

25uddXd UONEJIUIL)

%IC'8L (azy'ires) GLEBSL8T 008'00L°9€ 010'9F0°E 69 TILLT 6LEBSL'ST (9s€€01) TISF69'T 9SH 165 SINUIAIL [EI0 ],

%F1T (L1L'89T) £88's 009'+LT (865156} 18$*4.56 £88'S (095°291) F06'51T FEESE sanudaal Sunerddouou ()0,
%1996 981°C1 (Fi8°Lye) (000°09¢) (18¢°¢0p) $95°6¢ (F13°L¥E) - - . SIASSE JO 3[LS UO SSO|UIBD)
%LE 111 L¥6'ET LY6'ETT 000°002 (Lz8'65) PLLEST LPE'ETT 866°§T L16'C F16TE 2tuooul 152.3)U]
%Pl (186"60¢) 619°cy 009°¢5€ (zeL'ser) 1SE°6ES 519°¢k (855°961) £15°01C $56°El STUBOSINGUIDY
%ISHI1 ¥TTE FET I 000°9€ $6T°C 1€6'5€ FeTIE - - - DLIOUI [BIUAL D10
%6L 66 (c6) LOG'TF 000'St 050°T L88'TF LO6'tF - SLE1 SLt1 aWosul jRudy

sonudadd Buncaddouon]

%EL 6L (0s7'8£5) 0SP'LIET 00L"559°C (96€'85) WEGLIT 0SHLITT 680°L FL6'LOL £90°661 Sonu3Ada Buneaddo 1ay10 (10,
%I+'L8 (£65°F) €061 005'9¢ 9.8'% LTO'9T <06'1€ (re1) S0LC 1£1E SNOJUT}DISUA
%S LL (sg1°28s) S18'806°T 000°19t'T {(06g'901} S0TSI0T SI8'806'L (£99's} $EL'881 SO008L swoatl OSTA
%5T¢1 oL1) 0g 00z (TI1) 33 o€ - - - $1G3p Prq J0 A19A050Y
%E6'SL (5z1'6) FL3'ST 000'5€ (I1be'L) S19°¢E PLS'ST (oLe) 0LE - de1ds jo a[eg
2%6< 1t1 £06'9T T06'16 000'¢9 LEL'FE $91'LS 706’16 SLLG - SLL'G Buiggol put as1pUBYISN
%09 101 5T6 §TE'8S 000'8S FETS! 169°¢H $T6'88 79 14579 €60°L SINGISLP PAUILIC]

sonudads Guiresado Y10

%LYSL (Sstse1"L) SHH'SE9'0L 00S°0LLEE $00"950°Z IH0°6LSHT $+0'GE9°97 STI'E9 £€6°08T'T SHOHHET $91ES - sonuvAds Funesado (gL
%469"LL (oT8'L1) FLO'TS 006°6L LIEFY L5609 FLO'TO 916l 786 868'L Sy prey
2%EF L (126%€5) 6T0'8t1 009'10T {9c9°ct) £99'191 6TSTI §I8Y L9811 769'91 Funudn joong
%1108 (sLt'19) CTCLFT 000"60€ $TS'SI 000°6TT STSLYT {cehy $L9'0T £SL0T Azoyine a1gng
%6591 (105"1E8'C 66¥'SPT'S 000°0££701 STHI8E €LO'99T'L 66t'8YT'S {cot'08) LIWSLL £56°L69 feLsnpuy
%9008 (ps6z81'e) LEELS9T] 00001861 896" 0tL 8.8'916°11 LPELS9TL FELs ZIGT8O'L FSTOLTT [ERIBUNLOD
%L48'6L (szs'8zetl) TLFILTS $  000°009'9 $00°LTE $  SOHPEEY TLFLLTS L16'6% S Z80'I8E §  666°0Sk 8§ [EnUDPISIY

SI}ES - SANUDAD SuipEIAIQ

aaum!-n Av._nﬁ._o..—s.w:m: {enidy uu.-..%:mm falinBRITg | JEIX 1011g [EnDY WRLIING JEIX J01ag Jeniay
Jo o, AqBI0AEF P G} ABD L pipudwy IEP 0 ALI X 2)ep 01 JE2 R JJER 0} JEA X NEP 01 PHUOTY] HNEP 01 IUCIA HED 0} [JUOTA]

uosLIEd o)) 338D 0] JEIZ 0} 95PN rostiedwo ) JE94 01 ABI A UOSIAEAWIOY) YFUOYA] 0 YIUOJA
b D g ! . ! 0 Y3ROIA] 03 YIUOTA]

SI0T ‘1€ HOYVIN QAN dOTIHd THL 904
(QALIANYNNM TVNLIV ANV LIDANE - SASNAIXHT ANV SHINTATH 40 T TAITAHDS
aNnd DT41DF T

(uweSigny ‘A1) 3s4aa84 ], JO A1) 21 Jo nup Jmduodwo)) v)

YAAMOL ANV LHOI'T ALLD ASUBAVIL



£94L'S60°E $  SISSLTF $  0S0°081°L $L6'E6L §  688'IStE $ SIFSLTY s W Ligeln 5 (610050 §  {Triel $
%689 FRLSCOLL 995 TSP FT 0SL0TS'SE 980'75T 6LP'OETFT 995 TSE'FT (££T'LLT) LE8'FF6'T 865,997
%IE 1L FACEIT) $8€°025°1 000°ZE1T LETLIT 1576071 38€°0Z5°1 85¢T1 FL5°9€1 786891
%LSEL €TE66Y LL1°06E] 005"688'1 LLTOIE 000°080°t LLI'06EL 000°S 00001 000°STI
%t 9 0$1%T 058°cY 000°8% F1ET LES'TY I3 X4 {0s6) 5595 £i9'y
%L 1L 191°9C &£5°019 004958 (615°+T) 650°5€9 655019 £61 61T°€9 zit'en
%E1°0% 0TE 00 08tTov 008°708 018'201 0L9'¥6T 08+'T0Y 0TY0L 0L 09¢'s¥
%ELLD SLYBLL SLEFLE 050°ESE 16+58 ¥80'68C SLSHLE geetel 869'+Z 1zTor
%8S EL 898°68 TE6'GHE 008°6€€ 861°11 FEL'BET TE6'84T [GTRWAY $T88E S1LT
%LEE9 £EE01E1 §  L98PHET $  00L°09%°¢ (5080t $  TLI'SSHT LS ¢ Hlce0Ts) $§  9ST68C $  CTTLET §
%69 TES'E95'L 896°C81°LI 009 9%L¥T Bl (994 °9.8) PEL'6SS LI $96E31°LL (181°208) CLEOPI'T 6L HF6 T
i0/AICH (£0£°89z) LDE89T - LOE'89T - L0S°89T 91862 - 915'6T
9%68'8< 657596 15L°65€ 000°5T6 191°82 085'18T 15L°65€ 786°C1 T6LFT PLELS
%§0°¢01 (60TvT1} SOTHST'Y 000°0£0'F S61°00€ 600°758°S SOTFSLY 991'LE {18°SLE LLUEls
2%91'4L £O90rE'l LEEPSLE 00066 (867'2TH) SHOTISTY LEEPSLE (g 1¥D) 195948 £1T'SEY
%98t LYTLY0T $SE88HT 000°95S' TTL'T8T 1€8°90T'T £5E°88H'T {sos'1 ) LOS'$TT 00 €1E
/AL (§99°¢} 899'c - 899°¢ - 899°¢ it - I+t
%99°EL 8ETTHL TOL1ETT 000'F68°C {016'sT 14L9°L51T TOLUIELT 9€L°9¢ £65'192 0£8°L6T
%1589 68L°ST6'T 195061t 05T911%9 {6 ere £58CESY 19% 061" (152°8¢) $15°6T8 ¥9L°98F
YErEL- 9ZTRIT'I {9£8°L91) 06£°057°1 {029'T1$) FELFEE (948°291} {£18'9¢1) £69°L8 (sT1'69)
uounsﬁ_ Ausmugpﬁwch—w JENY uuwvzm DRI JERR A0 1ENRY Fdudrapg A X A0ta g [emay
Joey Nqraoaeg EP 0] 18X papudmy EP 01 JBDK TP 03 JEIX eP O 48X HED 03 PIVGIA IEP 0] YIUOY NEP 0} YIUop
nostiedine) 2)ep 03 ABIR 01 190png uosiiedwo)) v 03 Jua g osIIEd oDy UG 01 TITOTY

54

uomisod Jou wr d3usy)

s35uddx0 1810,
woneaidag
291 Ay
aoUEmSuL
sasuadxa O
25uadxd UCHIESISIUTWPE [BIIUIS)
INAIIE NYNJ
Supunosok JowoIsn)
UOISSITSUEA |,
uenqLusig

sasuadxa Jamod asEy2INg
SIPEQUOD [mINEE

SBD) [IpUE]

Bl [807) 1340 {129
e peosy Jagdwe))
Sutgan |, UOLSAWOT
uiqany, Puip TL-W
SI2UI0D) ASUMI§

a3pug Swsue]

QSN

S10T ‘1€ HOUVIN CAANA IOAd THL 04
(IALIANVNN) TYNLOV GNV 1I3DANE - SISNAAXT ANV SANNIATY 40 TTNATHDS
NN DIFLDATH

(uednprpy] 1D 9519a84 Y, Jo A1) oY1 Jo Jup) Juanodwoe)) v)

YEMO0d ANV LHOT'T ALID HSHIAVEL



55

690°0 S 6L0°0 S 6I'L96'T8ILT 8 9T IGT'FFG'T 8 SO*SSL'SPT FIE'S09°T 20N 8
aqeorddz 1ou FENAEE 10N (9T LE06ST) (CLL1rse) ajqeatjdde tou ajqeandde tou UOISS{WISUEL],
o|qear[dde tou a1qea1|dde 10u $LOES0T PTTLLT apqzoidde 1ou sjqeaidde 10u QUPIAIOM,

0LO0 0L00 00'899°¢ 00'L¥¥ 00F'cs 00g'9 aurgung, puip, TN

T FILD TUISL ST 14'6E8°L6T ¥85°886°8( £L88°0T9T 101107 Aou0lg

€C0'0 6+0°0 69°0FL 6EE 66'ELELE $68FIL'G $LTS9L SeD) [IPUET]

310 P10 $8'TSEYSHT T6'100°¢lT GLOBLLE] CrR'o8E’] dulginy, uensnquwio’

600 8910 QO SOTHS 1P S6oLIEIS 908°6LLSY L09°190°C Jaanyg 2112

0600 £90°0 STLELFSLE TOE1TSET ¥ 69T'T9 660°1889 ¢# flaqdwe)

+10°0 100 00°L0E789T 1L615°6T 000°895°61 000ZIT wenuo) [eieilg

(100} {£1070) 2E085°001 (06°6L1°5E) (008°852°5) (00ot'621°D0) OSIA
8F0°0 $ 6¢0°0 $ STIOF 6Ly § SETIL'98Y $ 000'T1L L8 000'+06°6 a3pug Swisuey
NEP 03 IWA Puow 1802 302 NEp qjuow HIMOd dASYHOUN

oY1 J0J U I IO AN NEP 03 JEIL Angpnop 01 183l HAM HMM

ad 350D J2d 3500

“SIENIIIE AJYINOW JO ISMEIIG JUIIIIE]S DUI0IUT 0] JDLLE J0U 0P SINUIAIY DHON
06L'8SL'9T g QIS'8TI'T $ 0L0'6650%C PTLO6TTT SANES [B10],
T900°0 1£81°0 68170 £Iioo 75810 L9610 $80°11T 065°ET FROCITT 661! SWBUT 1000G PUE IR
91100 8€80°0 $S60°0 {erion £060°0 09L0°0 £3L°TEE® 0r9'01L 086'¢E9'68 QLE’eyve'e S9[eg [RLOSNPU]
OF 1070 1901°C 10T1°¢ (L9600} 1€11°0 ¥801°0 $86°€9LT1 I 156 TOE'0LT 901 CET6LLS $3[EG [BIAIBWWO]
PEI0°0 99010 0010 S (§5000) g IS0 $ £601°0 $ LEGOLT'S $ L9STYR $ PEI6LS EF £85° LYY SO[BG [enuepIsay
IUELIEA uep 0 nep IUBLIBA Puow Yuow NUIAAL ANUIADT Aep quow SATVS

AEP 0] JBIL aead aonag 03 JEIF, Ajpauom Jeak JoLg TUDLINY AEP 01 JEIA AIIuoRy 01 1B38 HAAM HAMM

SHUSHNUIAIY SHESHNUIADY

S107Z ‘1€ HOUVIN GIANT dOTddd FHL 404
NOILYINYOJINI AYVINIWE TS

NN DTILDATH

(B3NN *AND 9sa3ARL ], 30 A1) 243 J0 3tuf) Juduodmio)) v)

IO ANV LHDI'T ALLD ISYIAVIL



You Are My Sunshine!

“This Sunshine image was made at the
Traverse Heights School Carnival,
celebrating the anticipated energy

from solar!

e e

Vbt e

el an il SO
s Uiy Bt s Jpmg

56




Reach Higher

May 18, 2015

Traverse/City Area Public Schools

Karyn Hertel
Timothy Arends Partner In Education Coordinator
Executive Director

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, Ml 49686

Dear Mr. Arends,

Thank you very much for the $10,000.00 grant for the Solar on Schools project. This grant
will help provide an incredibly engaging, inspiring and challenging learning tool for our
students at Traverse Heights Elementary School. Per your direction, an invoice has been
mailed to Jessica Wheaton.

The Solar on Schools project will be the first solar installation at a TCAPS school, and will
allow Traverse Heights Elementary School to play a leadership role in our region
transforming their learning center. It will be a fine example of our strategic goal to provide
the strongest academic programming to our students and have innovative programs to
leverage their success and future needs.

Thank you, again, for your support.

Sincerely,
'f’f [b‘wﬁ% W

Karyn Hertel
Partner In Education Coordinator

i Jessica Wheaton, Traverse City Light & Power
Cindy Berck, TCAPS Human Resources
Kate Madigan, Michigan Environmental Council
Amy Six-King, Traverse Heights Elementary School Principal
Paul Thwing, TCAPS Facilities
Mary VanValin, Community member

Traverse City Area Public Scheols is a public school district exempt from federal taxation under the IRS Section
501(c)(1), ie a division of the State of Michigan, an instrumentality established by Act of Congress, IRS Section 170
(¢) allows for charitable contributions to the public school district as: “A State, a Territory, a possession of the
United States, or any political subdivision of any of the foregoing, or the United States, or the District of Columbia,
but only if the contribution is made for exclusively public purposes.” Traverse City Area Public Schools provided no
goods or services in exchange for this gift.

w: tcaps.net 412 Webster Street t:231.933.5654
tv: channel 190 Traverse City, MI £:231.933.1760
49686 ¢:231.360.9584

e: hertelka@tcaps.net




